
SCRUTINY : 
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES 

AND PUBLIC PROTECTION 
MEETING

2.30 pm MONDAY, 7TH DECEMBER, 2015

COUNCIL CHAMBER

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded. 
 

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet 
as it will only be used for training purposes by the

Democratic Services Department.

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering 
the Chamber and using the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public 

are consenting to being filmed.

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 
(01685) 725203 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda 
can be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

A G E N D A

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


1. Apologies for absence 

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations) 
Members of the Committee are reminded of their 
personal responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s 
Constitution and the Members Code of Conduct.   
In addition, Members must declare any prohibited 
party whip which the Member has been given in 
relation to the meeting as per the Local 
Government (Wales) Measure 2011.   

Note:

a. Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest; and 

b. Where Members withdraw from a meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave. 

3. Update report on performance and progress on 
delivering the Housing and Homelessness Action 
Plan, including a focus on Supporting People and 
Housing Related Support. 
See attached report. (Pages 1 - 10)

Crime and Disorder Committee (item 4 only)

4. Safer Merthyr Tydfil - Update on Domestic Abuse 
and Sexual Violence 
See attached report (Pages 11 - 14)



5. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions 
To receive any referrals from the other Scrutiny 
Committees and Audit Committee; an update from 
the Chair on their attendance at the Service 
Performance Challenge Meetings and to consider 
any follow up actions from the previous 
Meeting(s).

6. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting 
To receive an update from the Chair.

7. Forward Work Programme 
See attached report. (Pages 15 - 28)

8. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair 

COMPOSITION: Councillor D Roberts (Chair)

Councillors: L E Smart, H Barrett, J McCarthy, S Slater, 
W R Smith and Raymond Thomas

Co-optee(s): R Holdaway and Nicola Mahoney

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725203

Os byddai’n well gennych gopi o’r agenda hwn mewn iaith arall, cysylltwch a 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01685 725203

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk
mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1

Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

AN UPDATE REPORT ON PERFORMANCE AND PROGRESS ON 
DELIVERING THE HOUSING AND HOMELESSNESS ACTION 
PLAN, INCLUDING A FOCUS ON SUPPORTING PEOPLE & 
HOUSING RELATED SUPPORT

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 Significant work has already been undertaken to implement the changes required 
with the implementation of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014.

1.2 However, there remains lots more to do in the transformation of service delivery.

1.3 Staff are committed and receiving appropriate ongoing training and support.

1.4 Links with Supporting People are strengthening.

1.5 Service demands are increasing due to the new legislation – as more people are 
eligible for help, support and advice.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 To consider and accept (if appropriate) the content of this report.

2.2 To provide a degree of challenge to the information contained herein.

Date Written 27th November 2015
Report Author Julian Pike
Service Area Housing Solutions Team
Committee Date 7th December 2015 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 This report aims to specifically address the direct queries of the Scrutiny 
Committee in a direct and concise manner. The author welcomes any further 
queries and challenge at the presentation of the report on the above 
committee date.

3.2 The Committee has requested a report providing: 

Monitoring & Scrutiny: An update report on performance and progress on 
delivering the housing and homelessness action plan including a focus on 
supporting people and housing related support.

3.3. The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 introduced a raft of changes to housing policy and 
practice in Wales. This Act is the first piece of primary housing legislation passed by 
the Welsh Government.

3.4 This report shall only address those policy matters which affect homelessness and 
housing allocations. It will not address changes with affect other service areas of the 
Council.

3.5 The key elements of the act (external link) are:
i. Introduction of a compulsory registration and licensing scheme for private rented 

sector landlords and letting and management agents, which will be delivered by Rent 
Smart Wales (external link)

ii. reform of homelessness law, including placing a stronger duty on local authorities to 
prevent homelessness and allowing them to use suitable accommodation in the 
private sector

iii. placing a duty on local authorities to provide sites for Gypsies and Travelers where a 
need has been identified

iv. introduction of standards for local authorities on rents, service charges and quality of 
accommodation 

v. reform of the Housing Revenue Account Subsidy system
vi. giving local authorities the power to charge more than the standard rate of council 

tax on long-term empty properties and certain types of second homes
vii. assisting the provision of housing by Co-operative Housing Associations, and
viii. amendment of the Leasehold Reform, Housing and Urban Development Act 1993.

3.6 For the avoidance of doubt this report shall address point ii) above only (as per the 
brief).

3.7 The various sections of the Act became ‘live’ at various dates, with the changes to 
the homelessness legislation coming into force on 27th April 2015. Unfortunately 
the accompanying statutory guidance (final version) was not published until after this 
date – which hindered the ability of local authorities to plan based on final detail.

Page 2



3

3.8 A two day training course was attended by all staff on 27th and 28th April 2015 
which proved invaluable, and allayed the fears of many of the staff.

4.0 WHAT ARE THE MAIN REFORMS WITHIN THE HOMELESSNESS PART OF 
THE LEGISLATION?

4.1 The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 aims to ensure more is done by local 
authorities and their partners to help people who are homeless or at risk of 
homelessness. The main objective of the law is to ensure people who are homeless 
or facing homelessness receive help as early as possible. 

4.2 It places a duty on local authorities to work with people who are at risk of losing 
their home within 56 days to help find a solution to their problems. It is hoped the 
new provisions will prevent 3 out of 4 people at risk of homelessness from losing 
their home.

4.3 Everything must be done to avoid an unplanned move from adequate 
accommodation and to ensure people can act in a planned way to improve 
their housing circumstances. 

4.4 People must have access to the widest possible housing options. This enables 
them to secure their own accommodation before they become homeless or as 
soon as possible after losing their home.

4.5 Prison leavers are no longer automatically considered as being in ‘priority need’.

4.6 The local authority MUST undertake a review of homelessness within the County 
Borough subsequently adopting a Homelessness Strategy in 2018. This strategy 
must be renewed/refreshed at least ever four years thereafter.

5.0 CURRENT STAFFING STRUCTURE

5.1 In readiness for the Act and the new way local authorities would have to work to 
implement the provisions therein, the previous Housing & Community Safety 
Manager (Beverly Owen) had reconfigured the service, whereby all staff are 
Housing Solutions Officers’, whereas previously there were ‘Homelessness 
Officers’ and then back office/administrative roles. 

5.2 All Housing Solutions Officers are required to meet members of the public, 
deal with queries, resolve housing problems and navigate their way through the 
new Homelessness ‘duties’ within the new Act, whilst also managing all case 
records and data entry requirements.

6.0 WHAT PROGRESS IS BEING MADE TO ADDRESS THE HOMELESSNESS 
‘REFORMS’?

6.1 Fortunately, Welsh Government provided MTCBC with circa £115,000 
Transitional Funding to assist with the costs which will be incurred by the local 
authority in meeting the demands of: 

Page 3



4

(i) assisting more people with housing issues;
(ii) assisting people for longer, - doubling of the ‘prevention period’ from 28 
days historically to the new 56 day ‘at risk’ period;
(iii) implement new systems of working

6.2 The H&CS Manager, when appointed in mid March 2015 set about prioritising 
activity and projects relating to the new ‘burden’ placed upon the local authority, 
with the aim of addressing many of the new pressures. The difficulty here however, 
is that it is only when the Act has ‘bedded in’, in 12 to 18 months, are we likely to 
have a clear idea about the full impact of the legislation. An example of this – is 
that immediately after implementing the Act the Welsh Government issued a 
statement to all local authorities advising that we were to treat all prison leavers as 
‘priority need’ for an initial period, as the measures they were putting in place within 
prisons had not yet become operational. The direct result of this was that we 
would have to fund temporary accommodation for persons that we did not consider 
priority need (for an interim period).

6.3 The projects to be funded through Transitional Funding in 2015/16:

i. Appointment of a Private Rented Sector Housing Officer – to work with 
landlords and improve relationships and hence access to private rented 
properties, given that the Act now permits the local authority to discharge our 
duties into the PRS (formerly only social housing could be utilised).

ii. Appointment of an extra Housing Solutions Officer – to assist with the 
significant additional burden of work. The Act provides for all persons to be 
able to receive advice and assistance; part of which requires an officer to 
consider, draft and issue to every client – a list of ‘reasonable steps’ they may 
take to address their housing issue.

iii. Homelessness Prevention Fund – allows us to fund the setting up of a Private 
Sector Leasing Scheme – increasing the use of PRS housing stock. Also to 
be used to make small but vital payments to maintain or secure tenancies for 
persons where they have run into financial difficulty. 

iv. ICT Development Project – new legislation requires new systems of working 
and hence data capture and reporting. This is a significant piece of work and 
will continue for some time into the future.

v. Training & Development – staff have undergone intensive training, but 
refresher training will be required periodically to address changes and 
interpretations of policy and practice. The Housing Allocations Policy must 
also be renewed as the Act makes some subtle but fundamental changes to 
the terminology used. This must be reflected in this statutory document.

6.4 We are on course to spend our full allocation of Transitional Funding and may be 
in a position to access under spent grant from other local authorities in due 
course.

6.5 Other work underway includes reviewing the Council’s use of Bed & Breakfast 
accommodation, as a form of temporary accommodation, as this is an expensive 
and often inappropriate way of providing temporary accommodation to our clients 
whilst we investigate their case or because they are deemed to be in priority need.

Page 4



5

6.6 MTCBC currently spends circa £30,000 per annum on B&B accommodation 
(net of Housing Benefit – so ‘real’ cost to the organisation). Our work to develop a 
Private Sector Leasing Scheme and work with Supporting People to review hostel 
provision and other temporary accommodation, aims to reduce our reliance on 
B&B accommodation.

6.7 Continued use of B&B accommodation, potentially leaves the Council at risk, 
should an incident occur in a B&B as a result of our placement (client). Many of our 
placements are prison leavers, who have committed a range of offences of 
varying severity. Scrutiny members may recall the horrific murder in a B&B in 
Argoed, Caerphilly earlier this year as a case in point.

7.0 EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE

7.1 With the Act and hence its implementation being very new and still bedding in, the 
author cannot report on performance at this time, for fear of miss-reporting 
data and providing a misleading reflection of demand on the service and local 
authority performance; and because the statutory performance indicators are in 
transition too (to reflect the new duties)

7.2 A significant part of the work already underway (funded from Transitional Grant) is 
to cleanse existing data, and to develop a more robust means of accurately and 
consistently capturing and analysing data, with the aim of then using this data as 
‘service intelligence’ informing how to improve service delivery and hence better 
allocate limited resources.

7.3 To provide scrutiny members with an idea of current service demand, the Housing 
Solutions Team have dealt with the following between 27th April 2015 (go live date of 
legislation) and 26th November 2015 (circa 7 months):

 361 service requests 
 Of which 76 were single females (no dependents) = 21%
 Of which 118 were single males (no dependents)  = 33%
 Therefore 54% of contacts are with single persons
 10 prison leavers (3 female/7 male)
 69 contacts have been with persons aged 17 -24 yrs  = 19%
 15 of these 69 cases related to young persons aged 16 or 17 yrs
 27 cases placed in B&B accommodation as temporary accommodation

Duties recorded against cases:

Duty Nr of cases %
Ongoing 4 1.5%
Not Homeless 24 7%
s60 only (advice and assistance) 210 57%
s66 Accepted (prevention duty) 41 11%
s73 Accepted (relief duty) – to help secure accom 82 22%
s75 Accepted (final duty) – to secure accom 6 1.5%

Total 367 100%

Page 5



6

Please note: duties recorded here of 367 is greater than cases of 361 as some 
clients are due more than one duty.

8.0      SUPPORTING PEOPLE PROGRAMME WITHIN MTCBC

8.1      The Supporting People (SP) programme provides timely and effective housing 
related support to enable vulnerable individuals to live a fulfilled, active and 
independent life, in a home environment that is right for their individual needs. This 
can be in short term hostel or refuge accommodation but also in long term homes for 
life such as those services funded to support people with learning disabilities, 
physical disabilities and older people.  SP is a Welsh Government Programme which 
commenced in 2003. It works through a partnership of local government, service 
users, support agencies and other voluntary and statutory partners.

8.2      The Supporting People Planning Group (SPPG) oversees the planning,   funding 
and monitoring of SP funded services. The SP programme in MTCBC is effectively 
managed by the Supported Accommodation Services Team located within the Adult 
Social Care Division of the Council.

8.3     The budget for SP funded services in Merthyr Tydfil for 2015/16 is circa £2.1M. 
Welsh Government has indicated that the SP budget for 2016/17 may be reduced by 
up to 20%. This will have significant implications for support services and the third 
sector providers responsible for delivering this provision.  

8.4      The Housing Department and Supporting People Team have strengthened 
working arrangements in support of the implementation of the Housing (Wales) Act 
2014 which places greater emphasis on identification of support needs at the time of 
the Housing Solutions/Options Interview. The two departments are also working 
towards similar goals in respect of sustainability of suitable needs led 
accommodation.

8.5  Recent examples of productive engagements between the two departments   
include:

i. Data sharing exercise (ongoing) – to evidence demand and pressures on 
particular services -this data will inform service reconfiguration and 
commissioning by the Supporting People Team and SPPG (where 
appropriate) 

ii. Work to create a single Housing Pathway for gateway services such as 
temporary accommodation, hostel, short term supported accommodation 
across the local authority to ensure that individuals across the County 
Borough are more able to access appropriate services to meet their needs. 

8.6       With financial pressures bearing down on all Council departments it is 
imperative that the operational and strategic links between the Housing 
Department and Supporting People Team continue to strengthen, in order for us 
to provide the most appropriate and effective services to our citizens in a period of 
reducing resources.

Page 6



7

9.0 VIEWS OF OUR RESISTERED SOCIAL LANDLORD (RSL) PARTNERS

9.1 The following text has been drafted by Merthyr Valleys Homes and the content 
agreed by Wales & West HA and Merthyr Housing. Hafod have commented 
separated below (see 9.6).

9.2 From an RSL perspective, the thrust of the Housing Act (Wales) 2014 has been to 
strengthen existing arrangements within the County Borough for meeting housing 
need. 

9.3 As partners to the Tai Toddiant choice-based lettings scheme, RSLs were already 
offering 100 per cent of the homes they have available to let to registered housing 
applicants, which includes applicants to whom the local authority owes a 
homelessness duty to house. Tenure-neutral floating support funded by Supporting 
People, but delivered by RSLs, a new homelessness pathway (linked to a tenancy 
qualification) developed by partners, and provision of temporary accommodation 
units are all working well to help the local authority to prevent homelessness.

9.4 The use of the private rented sector to discharge homelessness duties is also 
positive for the local authority as the stock profile of the RSLs does not always match 
the needs of people who are presenting as homeless. The use of smaller properties 
in the private rented sector, where household size matches property size, means 
that people are not affected by the Bedroom Tax, making the property affordable, 
and the tenancy more sustainable. 

9.5 However, the stock profile and increased use of the private rented sector has 
presented some challenges for RSLs. Smaller properties are in high demand, 
within a picture of falling demand overall within the County Borough for social 
rented housing. It is positive that housing partners and teams within the local 
authority are working together to develop work streams to rebalance the local 
housing market as part of the Council’s statutory housing functions and which 
help to deliver the aims of Welsh Government’s Wellbeing of Future 
Generations Act.

9.6 Hafod Housing Association does not develop new homes in Merthyr; it is 
from a lettings perspective that we provide this statement.  We appreciate that the 
Housing (Wales) Act 2014, requires a supportive commitment from the partner RSLs 
to assist Merthyr to effectively discharge its housing obligations to homeless 
applicants who present themselves for assistance. The Legislation whilst allowing 
the duty to be discharged to applicants in the private housing sector, it is this 
requirement which has posed problems for Hafod Housing Association and for other 
partners. We are now in a position with the Choice Based Lettings scheme, where 
we are in competition with the private sector to receive bids from applicants for our 
empty properties. 

9.7 Therefore we are looking to the Local Authority to ascertain why we are not the 
housing providers of choice. The situation has reached a point where partners are 
unable to let three-bedroom stock, as prospective tenants turn to the private sector to 
achieve their housing solutions. We await a recent plan to use those family homes 
for a possible leasing scheme as solution to the problem. 

Page 7



8

 
9.8 New pathways are being generated to allow the Council to have a clear structured 

plan on the process that is Supported living/young person’s etc... In 2014, Hafod 
entered into a Shared Tenancy   Scheme with Merthyr County Borough Council and 
Merthyr Valleys Homes, but terminated because of council tax complications. Larger 
three bedroom properties are not an option for those single homeless applicants 
requiring accommodation, particularly if they require financial support through the 
Benefit system.

10.0 CURRENT & FUTURE CHALLENGES

10.1 The new Act which came into force in April of this year has significantly changed the 
way in which Councils have to interact with clients in order to properly provide 
support, advice and assistance to client’s housing problems. We have made 
significant progress in beginning to make the requisite changes to service delivery, 
but we must acknowledge we are at the start of this journey.

10.2 Whilst the Transitional Grant funding from Welsh Government is very welcome in 
these austere times, we must also recognise that the funding will not be available 
indefinitely. Therefore it is imperative that we make best use of this funding whilst it’s 
available to review and change both front line service provision and back office data 
management. We must continue to streamline processes and procedures, moving 
away from the practice of ‘unnecessary’ repeat customer contacts towards a more 
holistic and comprehensive (but more time consuming) initial contact, whereby we 
capture all relevant information, allowing us to provide the best possible advice and 
provide the most efficient and effective solution for each client.

10.3 There will continue to be a cultural shift within the Housing Solutions Team (and the 
wider Council) whereby we cannot be all things to all people. We must prioritise our 
limited resources and investing in developing the professionalism of the private 
rented sector locally; and of course our relationship with said sector (through 
landlord and agent engagement), we will over time be able to empower more 
customers to be able to source and sustain their own accommodation, negating the 
need for significant involvement from Housing Solutions Officers. This approach is 
entirely consistent with the ethos of part of the new Act

10.4 There is a distinct lack of specialist accommodation for persons with mental health 
issues within the County Borough. The service is finding that increasing numbers of 
clients are either displaying behaviour consistent with mental health issues or 
already have a diagnosis of mental health issues. Most are complicated further by 
substance misuse issues. Without specialist facilities to accommodate such clients, 
the number which will have to be housed in private rented accommodation; and 
hence less likely to receive intensive support, will inevitably increase. To address this 
issue a sub group of the newly formed Strategic Housing Partnership has been 
tasked with evidencing the need for specialist accommodation, with the aim of 
providing a robust business case to fund (by whatever means) specialist 
accommodation for this purpose.

10.5 Cuts to SP funding are expected of between 5% and 20%. Any level of cuts will 
inevitably result in cuts to service provision/support. The implications of which are 

Page 8



9

difficult to predict, but may conceivably lead to great levels of homelessness, as 
tenants and those without homes, are less able to access the support they 
need to obtain and sustain tenancies.

ELLIS COOPER
DIRECTOR OF PLACE & 
TRANSFORMATION

COUNCILLOR CHRIS BARRY
CABINET MEMBER FOR REGERATION, 

PLANNING & COUNTRYSIDE

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

none n/a n/a
Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

NO

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Safer Merthyr Tydfil – Update on Domestic Abuse 
and Sexual Violence 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 This item is on the Crime and Disorder Committees Work Programme

1.2 The reason for this item is it gives the opportunity to meet with the Councils Strategic 
Partner Safer Merthyr Tydfil.

1.3 Safer Merthyr Tydfil has produced an update for the committee which is reproduced 
below at 3.1 onwards.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 That the Scrutiny Committee discusses and comments on the issues set out in the 
report.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

Safer Merthyr Tydfil - Scrutiny Report (7th December 2015)

3.1 SIP PRIORITY OUTCOME 4: People enjoy a vibrant, attractive, safe and sustainable 
environment in which to live, work, play and visit.

3.2 Merthyr Tydfil’s SIP focuses on 4 priority outcomes and under each outcome a 
partnership has set out activities that will seek to ensure these are met. Some 

Date Written 1st December 2015
Report Author Scrutiny Section
Service Area Scrutiny – Crime and Disorder 

Committee
Committee Date 7th December 2015

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



of these activities are planned and will be delivered through existing 
strategies/programmes of work. This is the case for Domestic Abuse.

3.3 The Cwm Taf Sexual Violence and Domestic Abuse Strategy and 
Implementation Plan is delivered by the Sexual Violence and Domestic Abuse 
Forum member agencies and is overseen by the Cwm Taf Sexual Violence and 
Domestic Abuse Executive Group which in turn reports to the LSB.

3.4 Legislation. Since the inception of the SIP a new piece of legislation1 linked to 
this Priority became law in Wales on 29 April 2015.  The purpose of the Act is 
to improve:

a) arrangements for the prevention of gender based violence, domestic 
abuse and sexual violence;

b) arrangements for the protection of victims of gender based violence, 
domestic abuse and sexual violence; and

c) support for people affected by gender based violence, domestic abuse 
and sexual violence.

3.5 The Act will improve the public sector response in Wales to violence 
against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence. It provides a strategic 
focus and ensures consistent consideration of preventive, protective and 
supportive mechanisms in the delivery of services.

3.6 The benefits of providing preventative interventions and support to break the 
cycle of abuse for current and future generations are multi- faceted. 
Having a safe living environment is a basic human need which 
underpins our ability to live healthy, productive lives.

3.7 The following Merthyr Tydfil SIP population outcomes for domestic abuse have 
been agreed:

 Percentage of beneficiaries (those engaged with support) reporting an 
improvement in quality of life/wellbeing. 

 Percentage of beneficiaries reporting feeling safer.
 Percentage of successful outcomes in the Specialist Domestic 

Violence Courts.

4.0 WHERE WE WERE

4.1 The prevalence of domestic abuse within Merthyr Tydfil remains high with 1233 
incidents referred to the Teulu Multi Agency Centre between April 2014 and March 
2015.  

4.2 In Merthyr Tydfil, high risk cases of domestic abuse are referred to the Multi Agency 
Risk Assessment Conference.  Out of 287 MARACs across the UK, Merthyr Tydfil 
had the second equal highest volume at 79 cases per 10,000 of the adult female 
population; and the highest volume in Wales.  Merthyr Tydfil has seen an 11% year 
on year increase but has the lowest repeat rate across Wales at 11%. 

1 “Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015”Page 12



4.3 An increase in referrals to the MARAC indicates that victims are effectively being risk 
assessed and supported.  Low repeat rates indicate that victims receive intervention 
and risk is more effectively managed.

4.4 87.8% successful outcomes at the Specialist Domestic Violence Court.

5.0 WHERE ARE WE NOW

5.1 In the period April – September 2015 incident and referrals to the Teulu MAC 
increased by 17%.  MARAC referrals increased by 11% compared to the previous 
year.

5.2 83.6% successful outcomes at the Specialist Domestic Violence Court.

5.3 90% of service users who engage with specialist support services report feeling 
safer and have improved quality of life.

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE

6.1 Increased reporting of domestic abuse incidents and referrals to specialist domestic 
abuse support agencies and MARAC from non-Police agencies.

6.2 IRIS (Identification and referral to increase safety) embedded throughout Cwm Taf 
GP practices

6.3 Domestic abuse seen as everyone’s responsibility

6.4 Public sector staff receive domestic abuse training appropriate to their job role (in 
line with VAWDASV (Wales) Act 2015 National Training Framework) and feel 
confident to Ask & Act

6.5 Adoption of a whole education approach to violence against women, domestic abuse 
and sexual violence

6.6 Recruitment of additional male ambassadors leading locally on White Ribbon 
Campaign activities where males take a stand and pledge never to commit, condone 
or remain silent about men's violence against women

6.7 Reach victims of domestic abuse earlier to reduce current risk and future harm for 
victims and children

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT

7.1 Domestic abuse to remain as a strategic priority in Merthyr Tydfil and Cwm 
Taf area

7.2 Current and historic victims of domestic abuse are aware of support services 
within Merthyr Tydfil’s Teulu Multi Agency Centre Page 13



7.3 Roll out training to public sector employees as per the National Training 
Framework 

7.4 Introduce a whole school approach to domestic abuse – raising awareness 
of healthy relationships and support services at the preventative stage

7.5 Domestic abuse is understood and interventions supported by strategic 
leaders who are accountable

7.6 Drive forward with the Cwm Taf Sexual Violence & Domestic Abuse 
Implementation Plan with partner agencies

7.7 Raise awareness of domestic abuse and not condone abusive behaviours

SAFER MERTHYR TYDFIL

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

Page 14



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Scrutiny Committee Work Programme

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance for the next scrutiny committee meeting.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 The Committee considers its work programme and approve, revise or amend it as 
deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions above in planning for the next 
meeting.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND
3.1 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda. 

3.2 At each meeting the committee will agree the agenda items for their next meeting 
and in preparation may in advance wish to ask itself the following questions.

Q) Why has the item been placed on a scrutiny work programme?
a. Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan 

and priorities?
b. Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns?
c. Is this item/topic of significant public interest?
d. Has the item/topic got budgetary implications?

Date Written 1st December 2015
Report Author Scrutiny Section
Service Area Legal & Governance Services
Committee Division Scrutiny 
Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt
Committee Date 7th December 2015

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



e. Is this a item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 
difference and achieve tangible outcomes?

f. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 
resources?

Q) What is the specific role of the committee?
           This will depend on the item – for example the role could be:

a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department

b. to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose
c. to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 

major issue 
d. to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 

investigation / review
e. to explore possible solutions to an issue

Q) What outcome is the committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item?

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council 

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes.
c. To receive an overview presentation.
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work. 

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the corporate plan / other plan / other strategy.

g. Improvement in service delivery

Q) What information does the committee need to fulfil this role / achieve 
this outcome? 
What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas / 
solutions.

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information?
Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police,  Health Board etc

Q) Does the committee need to ask for written representations?
The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer 
ready for the meeting. 

Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend?
Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. 
You may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. 

Page 16



community centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some 
people find the formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more 
appropriate to see first-hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining 
information on e.g. waste sites, regeneration projects etc.

3.3 Committees members will be aware that the Council has seven key priorities as per 
the Corporate Plan. These are:- 1) Raising Standards of Attainment; 2) 
Employability;  3) Economic Development;  4) Promoting Active Lifestyles;  5) 
Promoting Independence; 6) Meeting the Needs of Vulnerable Children and 7)  A 
Sustainable Environment.

The seven Council priority areas are delivered through 4 themes, and each of the 4 
Chief Officers has ownership and responsibility for one of these themes. The 4 
themes are:-

 Raising Standards - (Chief Officer for Learning/ Cabinet member for 
Learning) 
Learning & LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee

 Improving Wellbeing - (Chief Officer for Social Services / Cabinet member 
for Social Services)
Social Services Scrutiny Committee

 Economic Growth - (Chief Officer for Community Regeneration / Cabinet 
member for Regeneration, Planning and Countryside)
Regeneration, Planning & Countryside Scrutiny Committee

 Sustainable Development - (Chief Officer for Neighbourhood Services / 
Cabinet member for Neighbourhood Services and Public Protection)
Neighbourhood Services and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee

3.4 To reflect the 4 themes as per above in a convenient form, 4 “strategies on a page” 
have been developed and each reflects Measures of Success; Desired Outcomes 
and Strategic Aims and Objectives.

3.5 Much of Scrutiny committee work programme activity is aligned to the delivery of the 
Council’s corporate priorities and the “strategies of a page” can assist scrutiny 
committees in this role. See appendix I for the “strategies of a page”.

3.6 A copy of the Committees work programme is also attached.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? No

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Measures of Success

Raising Standards

Desired Outcomes

Strategic Aims 

All learners attain at least
the expected standard at all

stages in their education

Vision:

AIM 1: Improve the quality of
leadership including the leadership
of learning and teaching

AIM 2: Improve LA and
commissioned services

Leadership in all schools
is good or better

All members of the
education community

collaborate well in order
to improve the standards
and wellbeing of pupils

Teaching in all schools
is good or better

LA provision improves 
standards of attainment 

and the quality of
leadership and teaching 

in schools

P
age 19



Specific Measurable Outcomes - Measures of Success

Improving Wellbeing

Desired Outcomes

Strategic Aims & Objectives:

Social Services:
- Children
- Adults
- Safeguarding

We will help people in
Merthyr Tydfil to maximise their
potential, be free from poverty,

be independent and healthy
and to live in supportive and

resilient communities.
People in Merthyr Tydfil 

will be able to lead 
independent and 

fulfilled lives.
Vulnerable children in 

Merthyr Tydfil live 
healthy, safe and fulfilled 

lives.

People in Merthyr Tydfil 
are physically active and 

as a result have 
improved health.

Vision:

P
age 20



Economic	  Growth	  Plan	  
	  
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  Vision	  	  	  	  

Priority	  Area	  	   The	  Business	  Base	  	   Baseline	  
	  (year)	   Target	  	   	  	   Priority	  Area	  	   The	  Labour	  Market	  	   Baseline	  

(year)	   Target	  	   	  	   Priority	  Area	  	   Skills	  	   Baseline	  
(year)	   Target	  	  

Key	  Indicator	  	   Count	  of	  birth	  of	  new	  
enterprises	  	   225	  (2013)	   300	   	  	   Key	  Indicator	  	   Economic	  Ac@vity,	  

Unitary	  Authori@es	  in	  
Wales	  	  

27833	  (2011)	   30000	   	  	   Key	  Indicator	  	   Level	  2	  Skills	  	   6682	   7000	  

Indicator	  	   VAT	  /	  PAYE	  Registered	  
Enterprise	  Births	  	   225	  (2013)	   300	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Average	  Gross	  Weekly	  

Earnings	  	   £477.60	  
(2014)	   £500	   	  	   Indicator	   Working	  Age	  PopulaLon	  

with	  level	  2	  qualificaLons	  
(2011)	  	  	  

6682	   7000	  

Indicator	  	   VAT	  /	  PAYE	  Registered	  
Enterprise	  Deaths	  	   135	  (2013)	   100	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Claimant	  Count	  Levels	  	   1,100	  (Mar	  2015)	   900	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Working	  Age	  PopulaLon	  

with	  no	  qualificaLons	  
(2011)	  

9963	   9000	  

	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Gross	  Disposal	  
Household	  Income	  Per	  
Head	  	  	  

£13,500	   £14000	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	  

	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   Indicator	   Unemployment	  Levels	  
16	  +	  	   2000	   1600	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	  

	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Economic	  InacLvity	  
Levels	  16-‐64	  year	  olds	   7,900	   7,300	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	  

 

AIM 1: Develop a diverse 
and vibrant business 

base 

	  	  

AIM 2: Create a flexible, 
resilient and responsive 

labour market 	  

 
 

AIM 3:  Increase the 
quality and skills within 
the existing and future 

workforce necessary for 
effective business growth  

	  	  

 
 

AIM 4: Improve and create 
the right infrastructure to 

enable and accelerate 
business growth   

	  	  

Measurable	  Outcomes	  	  

Desired	  Outcomes	  	  

P
age 21



A Sustainable Environment

Vision
People in Merthyr Tydfil 
will live in communities 
that are sustainable, clean 
and energy efficient. 

Waste Management
Energy Management
Environmental Quality  - Cleaning / Fly Tipping / Litter
           - Air Quality
           - Noise

Flood Management
Planning & Countryside
Wildlife & Biodiversity
Parks & Open SpacesSpecific Measurable Outcomes - ‘Scores on Doors’

  - Measure of Success

Strategic Aims & Objectives -

Desired Outcomes -

Creation of more
‘Greener’ jobs

P
age 22



Neighbourhood Services and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2015/16
(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

 (Work programme Version November 2015)                                         

22 June 
2015

27 July 
2015

14 September 
2015

26 October 
2015

7 December 
2015

Corporate Items (Crime & Disorder 
Committee)

Community Safety 
Awareness Raising 
(EC/SP/JP / Cllr Chris Barry)

Key Transformation 
Budget Projects 2014/15
(CLE + various, Cllr DJ)
1)

Waste Strategy 
(EC, CLE, VS & Cllr DJ)

Report on Fly-tipping 
Prosecutions. 
(Street Cleansing/Health/Legal) 
Cllr David Jones

Housing & Homelessness
(SP, JP)

Policy Review & 
Development

Monitoring Reports /  
Briefing Reports 

Energy Efficiency 
Awareness Raising
(C. Evans / Cllr David Jones)

Highways – Progress 
towards transformation 
of the service. 
(CLE)

Update on Review of 
Community Safety 
Functions of MTCBC 
(JP/SP)

(Crime & Disorder 
Committee)
Presentation by partner 
agencies re: DOMESTIC 
ABUSE & SEXUAL 
VIOLENCE
(SP/JP & Partner Agencies)

Performance 
Monitoring

Corporate Plan 2014/15 
(Q4)

P
age 23



Neighbourhood Services and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2015/16
(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

 (Work programme Version November 2015)                                         

14 January 2016
SPECIAL

18 January 
2016

29 February 
2016

11 April 
2016

23 May 
2016

Corporate Items Highways
(CLE)

Energy Efficiency
(EC, CLE & DJ)

Policy Review & 
Development

Monitoring Reports /  
Briefing Reports 

PWC Transformation
(EC and various 
Officers)

(Crime & Disorder 
Committee)
Presentation by Partner 
agencies re: 
SUBSTANCE MISUSE

Leisure Trust
(R Marsh)

Effectiveness Of 
Scrutiny & Audit 
Annual Report

Performance 
Monitoring

Transformation;  
Budget Proposals 

2016/17
(LCJ, EC, GC, LB)

JOINT MEETING
(All Scrutiny Committees)

Leisure Trust Update
(R. Marsh and Chair of Board)

P
age 24



Neighbourhood Services, Public Protection and Community Regeneration
Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2015/16

Meeting Date Subject Invitees Theme Scrutiny Focus
Energy Efficiency CLE & 

Cllr DJ
Sustainable 
Environment

Awareness Raising: A report and session to raise awareness of the 
committee in terms of the previous Carbon Trust report and the internal 
follow up report. The report will outline the risks, issues and challenges and 
how these could be addressed

Community Safety 
(Crime & Disorder)

EC, SP, 
JP & CB

Public 
Protection

Awareness Raising : An update by key Council officers of the issues, risks 
and challenges in relation to community safety and the potential impact 
given the lack of an overarching strategy

22nd June 2015

Corporate Plan 
Quarter 4 update

EMcW Performance Monitoring: An update performance report. 

27th July 2015

Key 
Transformation 
Budget Projects 
2014/15

CLE + 
various, 
Cllr DJ

Budgets Monitoring & Scrutiny : An update on key significant transformation budget 
projects for 2014/15
1) an update on Bereavement Services & Street Cleansing
2)  an update on Grounds maintenance
3) Update on the Collaborative Change Programme in Waste Services 

14th September 2015

Waste Strategy EC, CLE, 
VS & Cllr 
DJ

Sustainable 
Environment

Monitor, Scrutiny & Challenge : A report which provides a range of 
information as detailed below :
(i) A performance update on waste landfill and recycling showing 

4 year trends, comparisons with other Welsh authorities and 
progress against targets

(ii) A brief update on the key elements of the waste strategy and 
plan and a progress report on the implementation of CCP and 
the new strategy for waste landfill and recycling

(iii) Identification of the successes of, and challenges to, the 
strategy 

(iv) Identification of the negative consequences of the changes (eg 
increased littering and fly tipping) and the impact of reacting 
to these (eg enforcement)

(v) Future changes or refinements to the strategy.

P
age 25



The chair will be seeking to establish a task and finish group to monitor this 
theme more closely.

Highways CLE Sustainable 
Environment

Monitoring & Scrutiny : A report detailing progress against the 
transformation of the service and the overall performance against local and 
national indicators

Update on Review 
of Community 
Safety Function(s) 
of MTCBC

SP/JP Public 
Protection

Monitoring & Scrutiny: An update following the presentation to Scrutiny on 
22nd June 2015 i.e. on the issues, risks and challenges in relation to 
community safety and the potential impact given the lack of an overarching 
strategy

26th October 2015
Report on Fly-
tipping 
Prosecutions. 

(Street 
Cleansing/
Health/Le
gal)
Cllr David 
Jones

Joint 
departments

Monitoring & Scrutiny: The Committee requests a report from the three 
parties (Street Cleansing/Health/Legal) on where are we in pursuing 
prosecutions.

Housing & 
Homelessness

SP, JP Public 
Protection

Monitoring & Scrutiny : An update report on performance and progress on 
delivering the housing and homelessness action plan including a focus on 
supporting people and housing related support.

7th December 2015 (Crime and 
Disorder 
Committee) 
Domestic Abuse 
& Sexual Violence

SP/JP & 
Partner 
Agencies

Community 
Safety

Scrutiny & Challenge:  Bringing in representatives of the partnership and 
questioning them about their roles, responsibilities, and activities

14th January 2016 (Joint) Budget Proposals 
2015/16

LCJ, EC, 
GC, LB

Joint 
Scrutiny

Scrutiny & Challenge : A report detailing the budget proposals for 2015/16 
and the implications for the 4 year medium term financial plan

P
age 26



PWC 
Transformation

EC and 
various

Budgets Awareness Raising/Scrutiny : As a result of the PWC work, transformation 
proposals will emerge which need consideration

Report on Fly-
tipping 
Prosecutions. 

(Street 
Cleansing/
Health/Le
gal)
Cllr David 
Jones

Joint 
departments

Monitoring & Scrutiny: Following up to 26th October meeting. The 
Committee requests a report from the three parties (Street 
Cleansing/Health/Legal) on where are we in pursuing prosecutions. Invite 
RSL’s to attend to discuss issues they are facing and how they are dealing 
with the problem.

Highways CLE Sustainable 
Environment

Monitoring & Scrutiny: A report detailing progress against the 
transformation of the service and the overall performance against local and 
national indicators. This is a progress / further report following the 14th 
September meeting when details of the transformation of the department 
were not discussed as it was still in work in progress.

18th January 2016

Trust RM Leisure Monitoring & Scrutiny: A 6 monthly update on progress and performance in 
achieving the stated targets and outcomes for the Trust. This item will link 
with the Economic Growth item in terms of the Castle development

Energy Efficiency EC, CLE 
& DJ

Sustainable 
Environment

Pre-Scrutiny or Scrutiny : Outline of the strategy and plan for energy 
efficiency

29th February 2016 (Crime and 
Disorder 
Committee) 
Substance Misuse

SP/JP & 
Partner 
Agencies

Community 
Safety

Scrutiny & Challenge:  Bringing in representatives of the partnership and 
questioning them about their roles, responsibilities, and activities

11th April 2016

Trust RM Leisure Monitoring & Scrutiny : A 6 monthly update on progress and performance 
in achieving the stated targets and outcomes for the Trust

23rd May 2016

Effectiveness Of 
Scrutiny & Audit 
Annual Report

Scrutiny 
& Audit 
Chairs

Joint 
Scrutiny

Monitoring, Evaluation & Review: A report outlining progress addressing 
the key recommendations made in 2015 and the impact on outcomes of the 
scrutiny committee process

Yet to be agreed Highways CLE Sustainable 
Environment

Monitoring, Evaluation & Review: Communication Plan before it goes out to 
businesses. Agreed at 14th September meeting.

P
age 27



P
age 28


	Agenda
	3 Update report on performance and progress on delivering the Housing and Homelessness Action Plan, including a focus on Supporting People and Housing Related Support.
	4 Safer Merthyr Tydfil - Update on Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence
	7 Forward Work Programme
	strategies on a page A4
	neighbourhood Services Work Programme 2015 16
	Neighbourhood Services Descriptors


